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INTRODUCT ION

Tn traocing the development of the Earlham Academy
1t 1s the writer's hope that the history and signiflocance
of the institution wlll be reallzed by the people of bthe
community. The historloal approach to thie study has brought
forth incidents and highlights whiech gontrivuted to the
success and fallures of the school, Also glven conslderation
is the religlous influence of the community in regard to
education,

Chapter One consiste of a brief descripbion of the
early settlemenﬁ and development of the Earlhem conmunity.
Tt inecludes information about tﬁe fipet settlers, the reasons
for establisﬁlng a towm, and the growth of the comnunity from
its founding to the beginning of the twentieth centuxy.

Chapter Two contains a hietorical review of the estab-
1ishment of the Earlham Friends Academy and of the unification
of this institubion with the public schools. It also describes
the tralning program and gives an agcount of the faculty
members of the Academy.

Chapter Three discusses the effeots of the Academy
upon the oommuﬁity. Algo, conslderation is given to the
detalils concerning public sentimsnt in regard to the c¢losing

of the Academy.
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Chapter IFour contains the summary and oonclusions that
the suthor has drawn from oompiling this work,

Information for this study was derived from many sources
inoluding the local school board files, the Earlham Echo,
interviews with former Aocademy students, letters from the
state department of public instruotion, also the state de-
partment of vital statistios and the state law library, and
from brochures and catalogues of the Academy. The early his-
tory of the community was ocomplled from books written by
interested historians of the community and the oounty., These
sources have proved to be invaluable since it was not uncommon
then, as it is now, to negleot many historical events without
any attempt to recoxrd them. In a number of oases 1t was
disappointing to discover that some records were oarelessly
kept and in other instances either lost or misplaved.

It has been a stimulating experience for the writer to
make this study because of his long interest in history. It
is hoped that 1t will be of interest and value to the oow-
munity where the academy was located as well as to anyone
who reads it, Certainly 1t is typical of the start of many
local school systems of the midwest to have the public school

grow out of and take over e former religlously established

academy.




CHAPTER I
THE FOUNDING AND DEVELOPMENT OF EARLHAN, IOWA

First Settlers

The town of Barlhem is located in the northwest corner
of Madison County, Iowa in Madison end Penn townships, the
greater part of the town lies in Madlson township, In 1851
township lines were drawn and the name given. the settlement
was Madison, after Presldent James Madison.l

Prior to 1847 the only white settlers in this area
were said to be trappera and traders, but after that date
the land became the obj)ect of aebt:lement.2 1t was at this
time that many settlers mlgrated into the territory now
known as the Earlham area., Many of these people came from
the state of Indiana and were of the Quaker or Friends
religious denomination. This seotarlah background waz to be

quite influentlal not only in the naming of the community,
but also in its early activities,

A _  Purpose of Bettlement

_Earlham dates its existence to the construction of

the Chicago, Rock Island, end Pasific Railroad through the

1Hefman A, tueller, Histor 6f Madison County Iowa
and Its People, Vol. I, (cﬁ¥335871573.‘ETE§E3.‘I§r3*.'37‘320.

23,7, Davies, story and Business Directory of Madlson
County Iowa, (Des Moinesa‘M*ITE"aEH'Eaﬁﬁzhij‘nggj%‘57-ISUT__.
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L
state of Towa in 1868, The town was established for the pur=
pose of a raill center on the mainline between the citles of
Des lMolnes, Iowa, and Omaha, Nebraska. At the time the ralls
were being laid there existed a small gsettlement to the west
of what is now the city limits of Barlham called Irishtown.
The inhabltants of Irishtown refused to grant the railroad
company Suitable land on which to locate a depot, Thls refusal
of land resulted in the company's deeision to move the ori-
glnal site eastward on land readily donated by Dave Hookett, 3
This location of the depot and water tower became the starting
place for the town of Earlham,.

The land on which the town was laid out was shortly
afterward purchased from Hockett by a Des Moines banker,
B.F. Allen, for the sum of twenty dollars per acre.u Imned=
jately after the purchase was made several people began to
arrange for the building of homes and places of business,
Even before the town was surveyed a few houses had been
erected on land that was included in the future town site
of Earlham. Businesses also began to appear before the town
was properly surveyed, Martin Cook erected a general store
he ealled the "shebang®, A drug store was bullt and operated
by Dre MeBe Lwoﬁs; When the survey hed been completed by the

rallroad compeny enginsers, it was discovered that these two

3pavies, op. Oit., p. 182,
b1pid.
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establishments were not properly located so they had to be
moved.5 after the completion of the survey lots were of fered
for sale at prices ranging from twenty-five to one hundred and
twenty-five dollars eaoh.6

puring the winter of 1868-1869 two lumber companies
were established which furnished the material for building
houses 2nd business congerns., Flve months after the first
stake was driven thirty-five dwellings were oonpleted.7
Seth Wilson built the first entertainment center for the
public in 1869, calling this building the Earlham Bouse.8

Naming the Town

When the question of naming the town arose, several
suggestions were offered, The name proposed by Mrs, Milton
Wilson was favored by many people, SO the name Eariham was
chosen, The selection was derived from Earlheam College of
Richmond, Indlana, a Friends school and thls was a communliby
settled by ngkers.g The reason for naming the town as such
was probably closely assoclated with the intention of estab-
lishing 2 similar 1ns;1tubion‘1n‘the newly oreated town.
However th;s_namg‘had bgen suggestéd, g stock oompany was
organized in the ?511,01'1869 for the purpose of establishing

e Priends school. Five‘thausand dollars was subsoribed by

{ Simeller, 1ogs Sitss Dy 323 61bia,
( 7|Tb1d." ’ i Bmgllor, oD _0_}.?'_0) Pr 323

~ 9sarah Nunamacher, Pioneer Higto of Earlham, (Earlham
( Iowa: The Chautauqua Club, 19277, p.'IU.“ SN et %
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gsome of the leading men of the county, but the idea did not
fully materialize because of the lack of additlional needed
funds, so the prolect was temporarily abandoned.lo

on March 30, 1870, a petition was flled in the Distriet
Court asking for the inoorporation of Earlham as a town, The
petition contained forty one slgnatures whioch, atvthat time,
was a suffiolent percentage of the settlers to secure actlon,
on April 26, 1870, an eleotlon waa held on the questlon of

incorporation and the results were favorable.ll

Growth and Development

The year of 1870 could be considered a year of rapld
growth and deveIOpment for the new community. In this year
of incorporation the enumerated population of Earlham was 222. B
(See Table I1). Two ohurohes were construoted, the Presbyterlan
and the'COnservgtive Friends., Also, the plans for a third
church, the Methodist, and a bank had been completed,l?

Other buainess firms and institutlons began'to appear
s certain needs for them aioéa. in 1871 the first public
sohooi was opened, Becsuse no building was yet availablé.

classes were held in the'baseﬁent of the Friends Church.

10Mueller, 10c, oite 1l1pad, S

P ]

125, B, Chancellor, Iowa Department of Vital Statistics,
ges Mgﬁnes, Iowa, in correspondence with the writer, December
y 1964,

13gariham Echo, October 2k, 1940, Pe Lo
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TABLE I
THE POPULATION OF BARLHAM, IOWA, 1870-1960

'—————_——___'——__.___—-_——_————-—_——_—————__—__-—

*State Csusus I2ar *8y,S, Census Year
222 1870
220 1873
228 1875
260 1889
287 1885
302 1890
535 1895
630 1900
8§26 1905
7439 1910
749 1915
803 1320
829 1925
897 1930
885 1350
771 1950
788 193890

*3tste census wss compiled every five years, btut was
discontinued in 1925,

s¥nhited States census oompiled every tem years.

The sbeve information was cempiled from the State
Censoral Returns, State Iaw Library, Des Hoines, Iows,
Eics Nattie Newby was the first tescher,}® Early scholevs
of the public school included the following list of

1“5\!‘-113:. Cr. 0_1§Q




persons:15
garah Nunamacker Malinda Thornton
Ella Males Jonn Stevens
Nen Hockett Mahalo Wilson
Ike Wilson ora Haxton
Sallie Compton Jim Thornton

Wilde Hibbs

By the year 1873 the population of Earlham had declined
slightly to 220 persons.l6 The plans for Earlham to become
the most lmportsnt rail center in central Iowa seemingly did
not materialize, The reason for the alowdoyn in the expansion

of the town is not clear, but the construction of rallroads

in other near-by communities was a probable vital factor
which ceontributed to the fallure.

Howevery, as things were, the town did continue to
achlieve marked growth in later years, In 1871 the first
public owned scheol bullding was completed for use, The
building was cénatrueted of brick and native limestone and
was located one block east of the business distriet. Ex-
tensive increase in enrollment was the cause for an addi-
tion to the structure in the yeax 1894,17

In 1884 Earlham scquired its first newspaper, the
Earlham Gezette., The first editions of the paper were

published in near-by Stuart and digtributed in Earlham;l8

15Earlham Echo, Qotober 24, 1940, op. git.
. 16¢hencellor, [<10% gzg; 17Earlhan Echo, loc. cit,
18garlham Echo, Ootober 24, 1940, gp. oiv.
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It was in 1890 that the Quaker influence in the
community became evident in the fleld of educatlion onoce
agaln, Through the efforts of local interested members of
the Friends Church en academy was bullt and operated, glving
the town two sohools, Thus, the dream visualized earllier
had become, in part, a reality.

with a good eduoational gystem operating in Earlham
and the growth of business concerns and farming, the community
continued to prbSper. By 1899 the population reported in
the census had reached six hundred and thirty persons.19 (See
Table I), Many new homes had been added to the residential
district and the citizens began to ponder the idea of a

nunicipal Watef system as well as electric lighting for the

town, 20

Although Earlhem has not to this date attalned the
high state of importance that early settlers anticipated for
the community, it has served the interests of 1its péOple and
has proved to be a good place in which to live,

This was the early history of Eﬁrlham, Jowa from
the settling of the wilderness to the turn of the twentleth
century, It was bubt a small part of the history of America,
a part which portrays the background for a sectlion of Quaker-

ism in Iowa,

18garlhan Echo, October 24, 1940, op. eit.

197b1d. 20Mueller, op. oit., p. 326.
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CHAPTER II
THE FOUNDING OF THE EARLHAM FRIENDS ACADEMY

The background for the establishment of educational
facilities is deeply embedded in Quaeker bradltlon.l No
doubt, it was this conoeption that prompted the founding
of the Friends Academy, "It was common practice ln a
Quaker settlement that a church and school be built sim-
ultaneously.“2 The Eriends of the Earlham community and
adjacent area were quite enxious to have educational OppoT=
tunities beyond the elementary level which would be avallable
to those who sought them, And through their efforts this
contention became a reality,

It should be noted that only one record book could
be located in relation to the Academy for the years 1892~
1900, Perhaps those pertaining to the officlal actlions
of the board of directors and the financisl affelrs for these
years have been lost to the ages or lnadvertently misplaced
without knowledge of any person familiar with the old Academy
or anyone of the present educational system. Extenslve
efforts have falled to produce them, so the history for
these years has been compiled from the existing records, the

1lMartha Hadley, former student of the Academy and mem=-
ber of the Friends congregation, in conversation with the
writer. June 9, 1965,

2Ibid,
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files of the Earlhem Echo, personal interviews, serapbooks,
personal souvenirs of the times, and a number of miscellaneous

papers and reocords belonging to former students of the

Academy,

Development of the Academy
In the lete 1800%'8 the idea of a Quaker secondary

sechool in Earlham was revived, Inbterest in the sohool galned
momentun and some of the town's most influential oltizens,

who were Friends, headed the movement, A board of trustees
was e¢reated for the purposes of approving plans for an acad-
emy snd of soliciting funds to finance the project, Prominent
members of this board included John J, Mendenhall, noted
farmer of the Bear Creek community north of Earlham; Mark
Hill, local banker; and louisa Knudson, Earlhem Friends
reprasenbative.3‘

Reasons for the need of such an educational instl-
tution were quite obvious, The public school systems that
existed in the vieinity at that time were inadequate in many
respects and in some instances did nnb,provxde for advanced
education beyond the elghth grade. .Mény Friends felt that
the oreation of aﬁ academy would remedy this situation by

affording a high school education to stundents not only of

‘3Information contributed by Elizabeth Maxwell and
Iloyd Mendenhall, descendante of the above, in conversation
with the writer, (June 7, 1965) '
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12
the Earlham area, but to students outside of the diestriot
as well.4 Thus, 1% probably did not seem necessarily to be
a local project for purely looai interests,

This kind of loglo seems to have been practiocal because
the exﬁense inourred in the oconstruction of a building and
proper facllities would not burden looal citizens alone, The
original intent was for the Academy to be a private insti-
tutlon for the Quakers, Bub At was later deoided thab its
facilitles should be avallable to any student who sought an
edueablon.s

The construotion of the bullding began in 1890, (8ee
Figure 1l.) The cost involved, mccording to various sources,
ranged from $10,000 to $12,000, The $10,000 rigure probably
represents the actual cost of the building with the remaining
$2000 being spent to furnish the interior., The site on whioh
the building was located was sold to the board of directors
for the sum of one dollar, Mark Hill, the donor, took the
responsibliity of laying out the plots on which the building

Bfoced and the additional lots which constituted the Academy

sround5.6

As it appears, the task of -finameing the cost of the
Academy was not so much' a problem, The entire amount was

raised through the sollcitation of funds from the 1o¢al Priends

-

“Maxwell; op. git, 51vid,

6Information secured from the deed to the Academy,
March 5, 1901,
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Counstruection of the Eariham Academy in 1890

flgure 1.
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14
and from Quaker organizations elsewhore.7 Church records were
not available to disclose any amounts of personal ocontributions,
but probably the largest part of the money came from the com-
munity,

The Academy was situated on ten acres of ground and
the bullding provided for the accommodation of one hundred
and fifty studente.8 The building was a two story structure
contalning four reoltation rooms, a muslo room and a library
on the first floor. The second floor contalned two assembly
rooms8, the larger of which wag furnished with opera chalrs,
In the basement were located the furnace room, the kitchen,
end the dining room,” At the time of completion, the bullding
was actlalmed to be the most modern struoture in the oounty.lo
Construction was completed in 1891 and the bullding was ready
for the opening of the fall term in 1892, (Bee Figure 2.)

Administration and Orgenization

The Earlham Friends Aceademy was opened in the fall of
1892, It was the last of five Quaker schools established in
Iowa, none of which are now in exlstenoe.ll A board was sew

lected to direct the affalrs of the school. These directors

?Mm311g Sop. cit,

8Souvenir of Quaker Schools, (Oskaloosa, Iowa: Te-
printed from the Western Work, no date), p. 89.

9gatalogue of the Friends Academy, 1893, p, 6.
10pueller, op. cit., p. 326,
llreroy G. Pratt, Supervisor, Statistics Instructional

Research Bureau, Iowa Department of Public Instruction, in
correspondence with the writer, December 10, 1964,
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18071B2 Earlham Academy, Earlham,

Figure 2. The Earlham Acadeny = 1890-1920
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came from a wide territory me is evident in the following
home looatione of the board members: A.F, Calllson, Cummings,
Towa; Ellzabelh Hollingeworth, Stuart, Iowa; Mrs., C.M.
Stanton, Mark Hill, end P.M. Hadley all of Esrlhamj Clinton
Cummons, Paton, Iowa; Reverend John Pennington, Oskaloosa,
Towa; S.E. Lewi®, Redfleld, Iowa; and El1 Compton, Dexzter,
Iowa, The offloers were John Pennington, president; Nrs.
CsM, Stanton, seoretary, and C.B, Johnson, treaeurer.lz

The first faculty was selected for the opening term,
many of whom came from William Penn College in Oskaloosa,

CeBs Pickrell, who had previously served in the publie
schools, was appointed prineipal and was also aseigned to
teach the classes in mathematics and ecience. Eda M, Haskell
was hired to teach Latin, Gremmar, and English, lr. G.A.
Wirtz taught instrumental end voeal musie., Ellen Hill, the
remaining member of the staff taught eloscution and Delsarte.l3
The same faculty was retained for the second year.

Enrollnent of the Academybdurlns the first year was
remafkably large., Fifty-one students had registered for
classes by the beginning of the final quarter, Students
were recgulte&,from‘a wide area, (Note Table II.)

Theleoat‘bf tultion was quite low, even for those

times, The fall term of twelve weeks cost nine dollers while

12pcademy Catalogue, op. oits, p. 1.

laIbld.. Dol 3 l.uMq: P. b4,
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A ROSTER OF THE FIRST GROUP OF STUDENTS TO
ATTEND THE FRIENDS ACADEMY, 1892-1893

TABLE IIX

17

Student Home town Btudent Hometown
May Anderson Winterset Clyde Hilghtower Earlham
George Brioker Earlham Nellie Joyce Atlantic
Willie Berry Earlham Hattie Joyoe Atlantilec
0lda Barnett Eaxrlhan Jeannie Joyce Atlantle
Lela Barnett Earlham Elma Mendenhall Dexter
Elva Cook Waukee Elzada MecQule Earlham
May Coulter Eaxrlham Will Maulsby Earlham
Arthur Churchmen De Soto Vinton Males Earlheam
Anna Compton Eaxrlham Addlie Morris Wintersot
Vernon Compton Earlham Emma Newlin Redfleld
S1ldle Compton Dexter Corn Neff Earlham
Eva Compton Dexter John Neff Earlhem
Robert Chantey Cagsey Frank Neff Earlhaem
Laura Cronk Earlham Min Nunamacker Earlham
Charles Duncan Earlhem Ormond Osborm Earlham
Charles Diggs Earlham Edith Piatt Langfilt
Lotta Diggs Earlham Randall Ott De Soto
Albert Feltz Winterset James Stribbling Earlham
Emma Peitz Winterset Nette Stanford Earlham
Walter rry Earlham Elna Smith Vaukee
Mary George Earlhem Maggie Thompson Earlham
Alice Hoag Waukes Clarence Wileon Earlham
Harry H1ll Earlham Lilien Wilson Earlham
Mabel Hill Earlhan Ida Wilson Earlham
Gertie Hockett Earlham Worth Wilson Earlham
Jeanne Harmon Earlham

—— —

Information for this roste
Earlham Bcho, October 24; 1940, p, 1

x

T wae oompiled from the
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18
the winter term of sixteen weeks cost twelve dollars and
the spring term of eight weeks cost six déllars.lu Thus, a
student could obtailn four years of education for a little

more than a hundred dollars in so far as tuition was con-

cerned,

In the early years at the Acadeny boarding wes pro-
vided in private homes within the community at a rate of
three dollars per week, Board was also avallable at the
Academy bullding at a ¢ost of one dollar and fifty cents
for a short week (evidently Monday through Friday) and one
dollar and seventy-five cents for a long week. Rooms were
available in private homes at prices ranging from two dollars
to four dellars per month depending upon the size of ﬁhe
room and the amount of furnishings.l5

By 1908 the cost of tuition hed increased to two
dollars per month for each subject of the common branch
end two dollars and twenty-five cents for the commercial
course.16 The cost of board was two dollars and twenty-five
cents for a short week and three dollars for a full week.17

It will be noted in the following pages that there was

quite an extensive turnover 1n the members of the faculty

41p1d,, p. 4.

15Academy Catalogue, SR« £it., D. 3.
16gariham Academy Brochure, 1908, p. 4,
17_1_13_13.; o
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from year to year. The reason for this 18 prabably due to
the manner in which teachers were seleoted. Aococording to
references in the local school hoard minutes, 1t was the
polioy to eleot teachers each year, If a beacher desired to
remain at the Academy 1t was necessary to request reappoint-
ment, It was noted that in many instances several candidates
vied for the same position, The procedure of the board was
to elect one oandidate for emch avallable position, The
Balary requested or required was a vital factor in the final
selection, Evidence of salary cute were observed in some
instances where teachers were reinabated.la

The salaries pald to faculty members of bhe Academy
after unification with the public sochoole were sonsidered
somewhat better than these of similar high schools, The
influx of twition from non-resident students was added to
the teachers' fund along with the loecal tax revenues, For
instance, the superintendent was pald a regular salary plus
a percsnbtage of all tultion collected, 'This was a plan to

stimulate recrultment and to bolster income,

Nature of the Curriculum of the Earlham Academy

In its first years of operation the Aeademy had been
established so that 1t would provide'forlgradea nine through

18yinutes of the Earlham School Board, Warch 3, 1912.
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twelve, Since 1t was established in 1892 there was no grade
uating olass until 1896, he curriculum was arranged in such
& manner as to provlde for two oourses of study, the academic
and the preparatory. The latter oouree required only two
years of study whioh was deglgned to prepare a #gtudent for a
commercial oocupation.19 The obj)ectiven of the Aoadeny
currleculum were to prepare students for a profession and/or
to provide a background for those feeking to enter ocollege,

The courses were arranged as follows

Academ)o Couraezo

First Year 8econd Year
Fall term-Algebra Fall term-Algebra
Latin Caesar
Rhetorie Generaml hlstory
Essay Essay
Winter term-Algebra Winter terw-Geouetry
Rhetoric Caeaar
Latin General history
Essay Essay
Spring term-Algebra Spring term—Geometry
Latin ; Botany
Grammer reviewed General history
Egsay Egsay
Third Yeer " FPourth Year
Fell term---Ceometry Fall term~--virgil
German Geology
Zoology English
Elective Elective

19Academy CthIOgue. Sp. citey, Do 7o
201bid.s DpP, 7=9s
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Winter term-German Winter term-ILiterature

Physies Political Science
Cleero Trigonometry
Elective Elective

Spring term-German Spring term-vVirgil

Virgil Christian Studies
English History Literature
Elective Electlve

Eleotives eould be Selected in the third and fourth

years to complete a four subject term, Electives consisted

of courses in Ameriocan government, Ecoonomics, and Bookkeeping,
Music wae optional to the students, but the humber enrolled
gave evidenoe of the interest of many people in this fleld.

Instruction was given in piano, harmony, voloe culture, and
sight reading.21

Pregaratorx Course

First Year
Fall term-Arithmetio Winter term-Arithmetic
Grammar Grammar
Geography U,Ss History
Reading and Spelling Reading
Spring term-Arithmetio
Grammar

U.8. History
Reading and Spelling

Second Year

Fall term-Arithmetic Winter term-Qivil Government
U.S, History Geography
Crammar Arithmetic
Physiology Orthography
Spring term-Arithmetic
Grammar
Physical geography

Bhetoricals

#lIbid., p. 9.
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Continuity of the Academy

Perhaps the sucoess of the Academy in its infancy was

due to the faot that the public sehool in Earlham did not
provide for such a wide range in currioulum offerings, Another
Treason 1s that the four year high 8chool was quite rare in

the vicinity, Many publie schools, such as Earlham, did not
continue programe beyond the tenth grade,

- From 1893 to 1894 the Aoadeny oontinued under the
administration of the prineipal, GiB. Plokrell.?? Enroiie
ment oohtinued to inorease and the schoo). began to recelve
reoogmition as an outstanding institution of learning, ' It
seems that for its time, the Academy offered ocourses non-
existent in schools of such 8ize, especially was thie true
of the emphasis on music and athletics, ™A citizen of a
town forty miles from Earlham stated that the Eariham Academy
was the best known school for its instructlon between Des
Moines end Gounoil Bluffs, 23

In the sp?ing of 1894, C.B, Pickrell retired from
the teaching profession and J,A. Beard from Indiena was
hired as the new principal.?* other members of the faculty
for this school year were: Deborah Pennington, Latin, Grammar,

and English; Olda Adams, Piano and Organ; Ruth Joyce, Axt;
and Frank White, Guitar and Violin, 25

22p0ademy Brochure, Op. eit,
23Earlhem Echo, January 25, 1906, p. 4,
zuAcademy'ﬁgcord Book, 1894, p, 10, 25;91 .

28|rage




23

Mr, J.A, Beard remalned as principal of the Academy
for the 1895-1696 school year, Mise Etta McCarroll was
eleoted by the board of direotors to teach Latin, Grammar,
and Literature, Bertha M, Beard taught English and History,
Idah Harris and Mabel Wagner were the musie instruotors for
this term, Ida Harper, art instructor, and Ells Hill, as
€locution instruotor, were the remaining members of the
faoulty. 2

The first commencement was held in Nay, 1896, Two
students haq completed the necessary work in the academic
course of study and had qualified for dlpl&mas. They were
Harry Hill and Nettie Stanford, both from the Earlham Com-
munity.2? Very little information 1s available conserning
the formal exe:oisea other thgn the faoct that they were heid
in the malp assembly yoom of the Academy n.hd that a 1ars§
crowd did attend.za |

The follqwlng sohqlastlc year marked the highlight
of the Academy while it was under the auspices of the Erienda
Church, 1In thils school year of 1896-1897 there were twelve
students who graduated, a number not to be ettained again
until 1902 after the unification of the Academy with the
publie sohqol systen. Etta ﬁcCa:roll was appéinted prino;pal'

26114, 27Earlnan Echo, May 20, 1896, p. 1,
Sve,
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to replace James Deard. She was assisted by Professor Francis
K, Jones, who also baught Mathematics, Sclence, and Psychology.
Ida Harper was retained as Art instructor. MNew members of the
faoulty for this term were Belle SBtonbecker, elocution in-
struotor; Helene Searle, Musicy and Dr, Edwin Day, lecturer
on Physiology and Hygiéne.29

The second emmual cowmeﬁcement exercise was held in
the Academy assembly room on Mey 19, 1897. Reverend Rosene
burger, president of William Penn College, Oskaloosz, Iowa,
was the principal speaker for the occasion, The class of
1897 was presented by lMiss MoCarroll and diplomas were
awarded by S.E; Lewis, president of the board of directors.
The followlng students received diplomas: James Stribbling,
Willlam Wilson, Eva Hockett, Sydna Gomptom, Olda Barmett,
Mabel H11l, Ormand Osborn, Data Barnett, Ernest Thomas,
Edith Baugh, Charles Wilson, and Gertrude Hookett, 0

A decline in the enthusiasm for the Academy began
to eppeer in the years 1897 to 1900, Enrollment dropped
sharply, Evldence of “Hard times" was mentioned as a
possible cause fbr the drop in enrollﬁent.al Also, a re-
vivéd interest in public education at a cheaper piioe was
belng asserted by many cltizens of the comnunlty;

In 1898
the Academy graduated only two students; in 1899, six

ngQadgmy Reocord Book, gg. clt,, pQ 28;
Earlham Echo, May 9, 1918, p, 1.
FlEarinan Echo, September 22, 1897, p. 1.
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students, and in 1900 five students, Members of the clase

of 1898 were Amos Pickrell and Edwin Ross, Those grad-
uating in 1899 were Waldo Hadley, Elza Pearson, Elmer Lewls,
I.W, BRarnett, Pearl Hadley, and James Hoockett, The lasb
group of students to graduate from the Frlends Academy in

1900 were Minnle Hadley, Cora Hedley, Cora Hunter, Waldo
Hadley, and Olive Hookett.32

The Reverend H, Edward McOrew replaced Miss MoCarroll
as principal of the sohool in 1897, He was assisted by
Jessie Perisho, who taught in the Mathematios and Science
department. Amos Plckrell, a former graduate of the Academy,

was the remaining member of the faeulty for this year.33
Student enrollment had been reduced to twenty students by
the end of the spring term,3*
In 1899 Miss Nellle Woods replaced Reverend MeGrew as
the Principal of the Academy. She was assisted by Miss Edith
Hunt, This yeai'marked the end of an era for the Academy.
Financial difficulties plagued the continuation of the
school and a decision concerning the future operation had to
[ be made, Enreollment had dropped and expenses could not be
| met on the tuition basis that existed at the time,

32garihem Echo, May 9, 1918, op. cit., p. 1.

. 3dpcademy Record Book, op. eit.,, p. 38,
( Academy ,
( 34_1'0_12.. D, 54,
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nification with the Public School System

In the year 1900 it became apparent that the Academy
could not continne with such finsnclel losses as had been
incurred in the previcus years, If it were bo contilnue,
it would be necemsary to find e different source of revenue,
The board of direotors discussed the possibility of uniting
the facilitics of the Academy with those of the publie
sohool system. A list of swggested ldeas were dravm up in
the form of a proposition and sent to the publie school
board for a review, According to the minutes of the distriet
board, this propoeition was received on August 14, 1900,

The proposivion requested that the local board teke over the
operation gf.zhe Academy on a trial besds for one year,
Ariother st;pﬁ;x:;__atiqr; was thad the Academy should continue

to be rgrez;;';ed, to 'ms the Earlham Academy even though it would
not he,g-pépggof‘$he public schools,35

fA#Aé‘spaolal meoting of the 5oara two days later,
Anguatlgﬁg.lapot'the proposition wae discussed and a yote: was
taken.“ Ié waz.ﬁnanlmeusly decided that the Acadeny pro=-
position should be aecepted,36 The Academy now became the
high school department of tﬁe publiec echoole and this area
of advenced tralning wes to adcept mon-resident students on
a tuition basig,

ISyinutes of the Board of Education, August 14, 1900,

36uinutes of the Bosrd of Education, August 16, 1900,

32|Page




27

An entire new faculty was prooured for the 1900-1901
Bchool year, Professor W.H, Monroe, who had been princlpal
of the public schools for two previous years, was named
administrator of the Earlham Academy, He was also assigned
to teach Arithmetic and Sclence, Allce Sterbuck, also of
the public system, taught the subjeots of Engllsh end Gremmar,
May C, Monroe, wife of Professor Monroe, taught in the musio
department along with Osoar BOgue.B?

With the merging of the two school systems, the en~
rollment inecreased to fifty-one atudents.38 The curriculum
remained relatively the same as in previous years with the
exception of the fast that the commercial department wass tem-
porarily dropped. At the end of the spring term six students
were graduated, They were: Pearl Stribling, Stephen Hoockett,
Eva Males, Mae McClean, Roy Pearson, and Nellie Hunter.39

By the end of the fall term of 1900 it had become
apparent to the local board that the experimental venture
of unification was qulte successful, In December, 1900, the
board appointed Professor Monroe Lo investigate the possi-
biiity of extending the use of the Academy from one to five
years, On February 25, 1901, Professor Monroe reported that
the Acedemy board of directors had agréed to sell the Acadenmy

building and grounds to the public system for a total of

37academy Record Book, op. cit., p. 57.

38garlhan Academy Brochure, op, olt., p. 19.

39Academy Brochure, op. oit., ps 19.
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eight thousand dollars, At this meeting it was deoided to
place the proposal before the public in a speoiaml eleobtion
to be held on Mareh 11, 1901."? The results of the eleotion
were favorable to the purchase, one hundred snd ninety-five
in favor and forty-one Oppoaed.ul The purochase was made and
the Academy became the possession of the publio school dis-
trict,

In 1901-1902 the Academy experienced one of 1ts most
successful years, (See Table III) Student enrollment had
increased to more than fifty studenta,uz Professor Monroa
encouraged students from varlous parts of the state to attend
the Academy. He established a recrulting program in whioch
he would vlsit prospective students in communities quite
distant from Earlham. The commerclal department was re-
opened, and this enticed many students. The required length
of study to complete thls programn was from one to two yoears
depending on the rate of progress of the individual,

The curriculum of the Academy consisted of the
following subjects: Psychology, Politlical Economios, Latin,
Rhetoric, Arithmetlic, American History, Botany, Algebra,
Physics, Physicel Geography, Clvil Government, and the com-

mexrcial studies.u3

“°M1nutes of the Board of Education, February 25, 1901,
411pbig., Merch 18, 1901

42Aoademx Hecord Book, Op. & tey Pe 59,
43101d., p. 63.
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Twelve students completed work for diplomes in the
academic area and three in the commereial fleld, Graduation
exercises were held in the assembly room of the Academy
buillding and the Iowa Governor, A,B, Cummins, delivered the
commencement address, Diplomas were awarded by the president
of the board of education, E.M, Crosswait.uu Students grad-
uating this year included: Leura Keil, Earl Stribling, Nellie
Bricker, Halla Rhode, Frank Walker, Clinton Hill, Ray Lewis,
Thie Lewls, Isom Hadley, Esrnest Zeliadt, Eva Hillan, and
Addie Stanley, R.G. Foster and Roy Pearson received commercial
certificates.u5 These commercinl certificates showed com~
pletion of the commercial course of study which prepared
students for work in the business field.

The success of the Academy under the diresction of
Professor NMonroe was quite eminent considering the growth of
the institution between 1901 and 1908, 1In 1908, one hundred
end fifty students were enrolled at the Academy, over half
of which were non-resident students.u6 The non-resident
tultion allowed for more men instructors to be added to the
faculty because of increased revenue in the teacher's fund ,

By 1903y forty-eight persons had graduated from the

Academy, In 1904, fourteen more had received diplomas and

44Ear1ham Echo, May 10, 1904, p. 1.

”5Academy Brochure, op. cit., p. 14,

uéEarlham Echo, May 20, 1908, p. 1,
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oococasion which would seat twelve hundred persons, This, Boo,
proved to be inaufftcient to handle the large orowd, (The
sohoel administration frowned upon this means of aceommodating
the public but it wes the best that they could do #inece no
other building in the community could handle the large erowads,?

It is inberesting to note that commencement at the
Academy was quite elaborate., A full week of activities pre
ceeded the final ceremony. A field day was held on Friday
prior to graduation, This affalr consisted of a track and
fleld meet with a number of competitive schoole in the
vieinity of Earlhem, Sunday was reserved for the annual
bacealsureate services, Tuesday evening marked the pfeaen—
tation of the Sacred Cantata Rebecoa, a musical and dramatic
production presented by the musie department of the Acadeny,
On Thursday evenlng, the senior class pregented the clasa
play. Graduation exercises were held on Friday evening
fellovad by an alumni reception at the looal opera house.lo

Beligious Aspects Of the Academy
Evan though the Academy was founded through the
efforts of the Friends Church 1t was not a religlously
oriented school, The Ffacilities were availasble %o any
student regerdless of religlious baeksround. As was noted in

the course of study, there were no requirements_in regard to

IEarlham Echo, May 20, 1907, Pe 1.
10Besume of commenoement evenbs for the year 1909,
909+

unpublished, no specif‘io date othexr than 19
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rellglons aubjeate, lowevar, the sohool day wan marked wibh
same vellglowa Amplloationa, (hapel servioes ware held eaoh
parNing \n the mailn asrembly voom and all nlindents were re-
auired to attend, adtrlobt ebudy habite ware encouramed and
any deviation from these oconatituted grounds for dlnmlnnal.11

After the unifioation of the Aoademy with the publio
80hodl ayatem aonservatism pgave way to n more 11bernl at-
masphere, Partlolpation in footbmll and other oompetitive
fotivities sudh as traok and fleld aventa were enoouraged by
the sohool i1tself. The Academy being a roolal ocenter for the
community was ; refleoction of what the compunity desired,

therefore all aotivities were subjeot bo tho approval and

support of the community,

Extra Currioular Aotivities

The Academy piloneered the athlatio programn in
Nadison County, For many years there was no athletio oom-
petition within a thirty mile radiws of Earlham. The nearest
towns to sypport athletios were Greenfleld, Perry, and Pan-
ora.’? rootball, baseball, and traok mnd field were the
prominent sports of the school. This program was not ocom-
pletely aoccepted in the early years beoause of religlous

convictions. Professor Monroe was quite instrumental in

11Aoademy Catalogue, op. oit., p. 5,
12garihem Echo, April 5, 1907, p. 1.
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establishing a competitive program in 1908 and in getting it
aoccepted by the community. He encouraged parents to allow
thelr youngsters to engage in sports in order to Treceive a
better degree of physical education. The following statement

Summarized his beliefs;

ssvsbhere 18 a higher oblect to be reached in athletics
that no amount of wooeq sawlng and weed hoeing can
ever attain, It is the mental development involved

in the training, Football, baseball, field and track

Girls were not excluded from the athletic program,
There were some oppertunities for them to participate in the
track and fileld events during the 8pring quarter,

Preparation for intersoholastic competition at the
Academy was sometimes 8 community project, Many persons J
often showed up at the athletioc grounds on the day of an
event to help prepare for the contest, Horses, machlnery,
and labor were contributed in order that events might tske
Place as scheduled, In 1907 there was a orew of forty
farmers who donated their efforts and faculties to prepare
the field for the annual field day. ¥ Tmis event was very
popular and the business houses closed for the day so that
the entire community might enjoy the activities,

The Academy was often referred to as the musieal

13w.n. lionroe, Academy Brochure. op. oit,, p. 5.
14Bariham Echo, April 5, 1907, CIn iy e 2k
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sohool, Much attention was gilven to the music program of

the school, During its time, the Academy had the distinotion

of maintalning one of the largest school orchestras in the

state. Every student in the Academy was given musical

training free of charge and ocould Join the ochoruas,

band, or
orohestra.ls

It was customary that the orchestra provide

musie for the speclal activities of the 8chool and for the

chapel services that were held each morning in the assembly

room, It was undoudtedly the musio department that attracted

nany students to the Acadeny,

15Acadeny Brochure, Op« oibe, p. 5.
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CHAPTER IV
SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

The hilstory of the Earlham Academy was rather brief,
but not insignificant, The founding of the Academy in 1890
showed a marked interest of the community in educatlon. The
Academy offered m student a well rounded educatlon whioh
was not common at the time,

The Quakers or Friends' baockground in the community
was responsible for the establishment of an acndemy which
was earller planned as a "stepping stone" to a oollege,
This dream did not fully materialize, but there 18 no doubt
that the Earlham Academy had the characteristices of an ad-
vanced school,

Flnanclal difficulties forced the Friends to com-
pletely abolish any intent of seeking the ultimate goal
of making Earlham a college town. The financlal status of
the school became so stralned that it was necessary to
eventually sell the facilities and building to the publio
school system.

This move toward unification greatly improved the
educational system by maintaining many rigid Quaker pro-
cedures which were instituted in the Academy and which had
proved worthwhile, For instance the requirements of study

habits and curricular selection were such as to provide a
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student with an outstanding baokground preparation either

for oollege or the professions,

The faoculty at the Academy were better qualified

than those of many schools of simllar size, College degrees

were mandatory. The administration, especially W.H, Monroe,
was very partiocular about the qualifications of a teacher.

Teachers' salaries were more impressive because the tax

structure and tuitiom combined made higher wage offerings
possible,

The success of the Academy was 80 great that a re-

organization movement was necessary, However, this move

meant an end to the Academy 1naesmuoh as the bullding could

not provide for the inereased enrollment,

The death of the Academy came at the apex of 1its

sugccessg, This was not as regrettable as the ocase might

seem, for the people of the community had realized that it
had served its purpose well in the establishment of a sound
educational system for future generations,

There was some nostalgia on the part of the alumni,
and through theilr efforts Some of the heritage of the Academy
has been preserved in the 0old bell which still remains on
the school grounds today.

The Quaker background is subsiding in the Earlham
area as 18 the history of the old Academy, The institu-

tion is 2 relic of the past remembered mostly by those who
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partiolpnted in Ate eximbence and Am beilng forgobten by Lthowe

who knewv only of Atm exiuetenoe, MNWany permonm of the oommunity

todny are unawnre that suoh an institution ever eximted in
fiarlham, Towm, It A6 1w quite obvious that had there nol
been an nomdemy, thare would nob he the highly developad
wohool mymbtem whieh funotlonm in that ocommunity today,

The marpgence of bthe Larlham Aomdemy with the publio
wohooln represents a true ploture of bthe prooedures whioh
happened in many other midwembern ocommunities, [bL Aim the
ntory of eduwoamtional himtory whioh hmm been nepgleoted but

nhould not be forpollen or lowt for fubure genermbions to

consider,
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GRADUATES OF THE ACADEMY 1896-1920

CLASS OF 18%

Harry HIll Nettle Stanford
CLASS OF 1897

E. M. Thomas Gertrude Hockett

Wm. Wilson Eva Hockett

Mable Hil Olda Barnett

Edith Baugh Chas, Wilson

Jas, Stribling Data Barnett

Sldney Compton Orman Osborn

CLASS OF 1898
Amos Plckrell Edwin Ross

CLASS OF 1899

Waldo Hadley Pearl Hndley
I W. Barnett Elmer Lewis
Elza' Pearson Jas. Hockett

CLASS OF 1900
Minnle Hadley Cora’ Hunter
Ollver Hockett Cora_Hadley
Waldo Hockett Myrtle Thomas

CLASS OF 1901
Pearl Stribling * Roy Pearson
Mae McLean ﬁva Males
Stephen Hockett Nelle Hunter

CLASS OF 1902

Academlc Course

Laura Kall Thia Lewls
Halla_Rhode Eva_Hlllan
Ray Lewls Nellle Bricker
Ernest Zelladt Clinton HIll
Earl Stribling Isom Hadley
Frank Walker Addle Stanley
Commerclal Course
R. G. Foster S. D. Hockett

Roy Pearson

CLASS OF 1903

Academlc Course
Ray R. Price Lydia Rlser
Anna Hadley . Mary Hibbs
Ethel Bricker Josephine Duff
Ethel Stanley o

Commerclal Course
Ernest Zelladt Chas. E. Hunter
Roy W. Orrls H. Roy Neff
Ray E. Taylor Wm. W. Clements -

Fred C. Fritsen

CLASS OF 1904

Academlc Course
Lottle Schlarb Loulse Bosley

Zaldee French Virgle Duff
Minnie Compton Selma Zelladt
Grace Wynkoop Harry Allen
Alta Stanley Floy Harrison
Mable Couch Julla Clements

Myrtle Morgan Willlam Beals
Jose Bosley Nora Dalley
Commerclal Course
C. C. Couch : E. T. Couch

Earnest Woolery
Orland French Ethel Bricker
Clinton HIill

Burdette Van Stigt

. Blanche McEride

CLASS OF 1905

Academlc Course
Maggle Fritzen Earl Compton

Lora Hadley Amr Hadley
Mable Eppard Evangeline Riser
Stacla Moorman Ina Barrett
Idelle Carty Roy Nellls
Lloyd H. Mendenhall Belva Moorman
Ethel Mitchell C. W. Schouboe

Marle Pearson
Minnle Carty
Inez Garrett

Martha DeVault
Mae Anderson
Glenn Garrett

Commerclal Course

Lloyd Wright

Scott McKlbben

CLASS OF 1906
Academle Course

Mable Price Mattie Hadley
Carrle Stanley Paul Monroe
Hazel Fry Josephine Van Stigt

Nellle Jones
Jay Fancher

Maggle Spence
Arthur Clements

Chloe Jones Bessle Coffln
Ella® Fritsen Chas. Hockett
Gayle Orris o Anna Alspaugh
Elva Hadley Zella Cook
Willley Glbbons- Seth Fry
Lulu Bllderback Grace Crowder

Harry Bell

Commerclal Course
Belva M. Moorman Nell L. Neff
Evangellne Rliser Albert J. DeVault
Chas. W. McBride Stacla Moorman
Sllas Compton Ross L. Taylor
J. H. Marston

CLASS OF 1907

’ Academlc Course
Edna Jean Bosley Emlly Lundgren
Maude Clements Earn F. Fry
J. Lloyd Pearson Orpha Hadley
Lois Knox Josephlne T. Schouboe
Mayme M. Hockett Earl G. Campbell
Mayme Z.-Colby George A. Rowen
Raymond E. Mendenhall Mima White

- Oren B. Hadley Edna L. Todhunter

Hattle Hill Lilllan A. Stanley
Jennle I. Woolery Elsle Willlams
Hazel Cochran
Gertrude Peterson Marjorie Bosley
B. H. Schouboe Denton C. Fry
Ida Ruth Hawkins Veda A. Hodson
Commerclal Course
Lulu B. Bllderback Ida N. Scar
E. R. Kenworthy G. D. Jackson
Clarence DeVault Tressle R. Cook

F. J. Nelson R. A. Imboden
R. A. Wetrich F. W. Comp
Aaron Macy Chas. R. Hockett

Scott J. Shifflett
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CLASS OF 1908

Academlc Course
Amy E. Beals Mary M. LaPella
Harry R. Cochran June Neff
Mary M. Cronk Edith E. Schlarb
Alpha O. Hawkins Marje HIN
Leah Minerva Stanley Pearl Cline
Effle M. Hoadley Clark W. Fancher

Charles P. Mleynek Ross J. Reynolds
Clyde R. Nolte Willlam J, pence

Peari G. Smith Minnle O. Benson
Ralph 1. Totton Cora_Bell Coffin
Loyal. R. Gllbert Bert E. Fry

Forrest J. Hibbs 1 Hibbs

Haze
Mabel E. Mleynek Clifford G. Zeljadt -

Commerclal” Course $
Denton C. Fry Jennle I, Woolery

Hattle Hiil Veda A. Hodson °

Ruth I. Hawklns - Raymond Smith

Emma I. Veverka Mattle A. Hadley

Chester K. Ledlle Mayme I. Hockett
CLASS OF 1909

Academic Course

John Bechtel Beulah Powel)
Cecll Harris y Clarence DeVault
Ralph. Thompson Willard Fry
Ella Scar . Jessle Dunbar
Della Dunbar Calvin McCorkle
Katle Croft Willbur Rehard
Lorena Mitchell Della Van Stigt

Y Imboden Virgll Campbell
Fred Fry

Commerclal Course

‘Harry Cochran Arthur R. Francls
Clyde Nolte Alpha Hawklins
Mary LaPella + Willlard Sulgrove

CLASS OF 1910
Commerclal Course

Hesper Aronson Bert R. Fry
Willard W. Fry Robert' F. Clarke
Fred A. Fry Calvin W, McCorkle
Jesse E. McBride L. Mae McKlbben
Charles S. Macy © JAlta M. Newby

Academlc Course
Carl O. Bricker Mary L. Compton
T.illlan Conv . Harry C. Irvin
Grant Shifflett Arvilla Stanley
Lawrence M. Wise

CLASS OF 1911

Academic Course

Mary Price Lisle Bickford
Nellle Fry- Mlldred Eppard
Beatrice Fry Ruth Bond
Myttle Potter Jennle Beals

“'Ibert “Wawklins Irma Crosswait

Homer Hadley John Moreland

Lerintha Mendenhall - 3
Commerclal Course

Louise Thornton Fred Elsele
Mable Mleynek .. Virglinla Fry
* CLASS OF 1912
Willlam F. Price Jessle F. Smith
Scott T. Crosswalt Ross ‘Harrison

Blanche H. Mleynek Clara Zelladt
Clarence B. Brooker Ethel Hester
George H. Finney Ruth ‘M. Marston
Nora Rees allace G. Jackson
Mildred M. Couch Ralph E. Brooker
Martha J. Packard Roscoe G. Eyerly
Adelaide A. Hibbs

: Horace™ Fry -
John N. Conrad Kenneth E. Willllams
Earl Nelson Carl Hodson
Ina McDonald Hesper Aronson
Lols Addy -Lorene Carey
Harry Nelson T.loyd Men~enhaijl
Walter Cook Ernest R. Elsbury

CLASS OF 1913
Academlc Course

Myra Cook Grace Bond
Abble Rose Clara Tough
Vivian Fry Myrtle James
Frank Wiison Lorene Carey
Charles Scar Elsle McBride
Ollve Hawkins Virginia Fry
Hazel Elsbury Mary Stanley
Ollve DeVau!t Allce’ Griswold

Flossle Potter Vivian Hemphi]
Bruce Kenworthy . Esther Crosswalt

Harry Nelson Grace Cook
Lioyd Spencer George Cunningham
Maudle Neldeigh Mae Neldelgh
Nliol Thornton Lloyd Pearson

Franlkc Wilson

Commerclal Course
Nlol Thornton Kenneth Williams
Lloyd Pearson Abble Rose

Harry Nelson
CLASS OF 1914

Stella M, Peterson Pearl A. Davls
Bernlce R. Cochran  Edna M. Elsele

Hortense H. Clements Paul N, Payrne
Willlara J, Hadley D. Ethel Mitton
D, Dolores Dudley R. Pear] Shifflett
Reld B, Walker Wayne D, Thomnas

Peter Anderson Robert Croft
Arthur Croft Vasha Spence
Phillp C. Macy Orville E. Bast
Leo Mapes Phllll{; Compton
Bessle ' E. Veverka va Wright
CLASS OF 1915
Lloyd H. Spencer Ivan E. Zelladt
Loyal P. 'Thomas Margaret E. Plke
Russell L. Rose erl E. Nellls
J. Ross Moore Robert J. Lewls
Vasha L. Spence Elbert J. Beals

Florence E. Hays Data \W. Merlical
Laura M. Haworth Fred R. Hunter

Florence A. Merical Isaac B. McBride
M. Irene Reader Beulah B. Bliderback

Fred J. Scar Golda Overton
Willllam P. Allen Roland_J. Cook
Sylva Overton Bryan F. Parne
Walter J. Peterson Josie M. Merical
Eleanor M. Gowln Hazel Palmer
Alnha Grace' Gannon Beatrice Jensen
Charles Thrallkill Elsle Cook
Vyrle Moody Clara Clampitt

Helen Stanley George W. Rees

Nellle Curts
& CLASS OF 1916

Geneva Fisher Eudora Pearson

Cora Morse Louise Flillman
Ilelen Ramsey Veta McKibben
Edith Knox Ruble Dlxgs
Earle Crosswalt J. Fletcher Moody
Rov Kalbach Dale Niblo
Princelle Thomas Mervyn McLennan
James Brown Nellle Brown
Emily Clements Helen HosklIns
Karl Gubser Bernard E. Cook

John H, Gollghtly Loulse Walker
Miron Spencer Chester Crowl

Charles Thrallkil
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CLASS OF 1917

Lela E. Myers Esther E. Prico
Dorothy Godby Neeta E. Compton

Bernard J. Fry Mlldred E. Ba t
Theresa Z. Potter Verde E. Nlm::r'

ary E. Lentz Irene Walker
Madellne D. Kelly Lucllle Junkin
Lols Hoskins Maurjce Neft
Ruth A. Crawford Fern Utterback
Clara Rees Harry L. Chestnutwood
O. Dale Lentz George R. Nichols
Jacob I. Crawford Carroll F. Leeper
Mark L. Thomson Robert Godby

R. Troy Kenworthy Leo Conrad
Roland " Conrad Earl D. Schalkle
CLASS OF 1918
Pauline Bllderback Ceclle Bricker
Esther M. Cook Elsle Clampitt
Elma_Clements Velma M. Dudley
Ots Fritz Naom| M. Gannon

Evelyn Miller
Thomas M. Hester Theodore Marston
Lawrence E. Neff Ellzabeth Knox
Hllda Ramsey
Nettle F. Spence Cletus L. Stanley
Charles R. Trucks George Willllams

CLASS OF 1919

Lula Beals Pauline Brown
Mary Burdine Marlon O. Compton
F, rEyvern Conrad Elmer O, Craven
Loyde Bruce DeHart

ary S.
Mlldred Goodson Sylvia  Johnson
Helen W. Jones elen Stalford
Claud B, W. McBrlde Lols Stanley
Ruth L. Stubbs E. Lane Wilcox
Lora E. Ramsey V/ard E. Lewls
Marlin Hoyt Neally

CLASS OF 1920

Evallne Davis
Arthur Edwards

Von Allen . Howard Bunnell
Luclle Bast Mary Bricker
Bernelce Cook Esther Compton
Glen Crosswalt Clara Cole
Bennetta Callison Russell Duff
Ruth Eyerly . Elma Gollghtlly
Grace Howard oy Hutzell
Frank HIll Lucllle Hoskins
Charles Irvin Mina Johnson
Gayle Junkin Florence Myers
Marle Myerx Eva Manders
Gale Marston Earl Mullins
Lois Neft Roe Payne
Bessle Riser Dorothy Shambaugh
Margaret Thomson Cella Walton

Lucllle Veverka
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Briefing Document: The Earlham Academy (1893-1923)

Document Title: Review of Excerpts from "The Earlham Academy.pdf" by Ronald Myers (August, 1966)
Date: October 26, 2023
Prepared by: Gemini Al

Overview: This briefing document summarizes the key themes, important ideas, and factual information
presented in the provided excerpts from Ronald Myers' "The Earlham Academy: A Quaker Founded
Institution of lowa, 1893-1923." The document covers the founding and development of the town of
Earlham and the Academy, the nature of the Academy's curriculum and student life, its unification with
the public school system, its eventual closing, and its impact on the surrounding community.

Key Themes and Important Ideas/Facts:
l. The Founding and Development of Earlham, lowa:

¢ Location and Early Settlement: Earlham is located in the northwest corner of Madison County,
lowa. Prior to 1847, the area was primarily inhabited by trappers and traders. Later, many settlers
migrated from Indiana, drawn partly by Quaker influences.

o Purpose of Settlement: Earlham's existence was facilitated by the construction of the Chicago,
Rock Island, and Pacific Railroad through lowa in 1868. The town was established for the purpose
of arail center on the main line between Des Moines, lowa, and Omaha, Nebraska.

e Naming the Town: Several names were suggested for the town, but "Earlham" was chosen. This
selection was favored by Mrs. Milton Wilson and was derived from Earlham College in Richmond,
Indiana, a Friends school. This name reflected the community's Quaker background and the
intention of establishing a similar institution in the new town.

e Growth and Development: The year 1870 marked a period of rapid growth for Earlham following
its incorporation. By 1890, the population had reached six hundred and thirty persons. However,
by 1873, the town's population had slightly declined as plans for Earlham to become the most
important rail center in central lowa did not fully materialize. Despite this, the town continued to
grow, and by 1871, the first public school building was completed.
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Il. The Founding of the Earlham Friends Academy:

Background and Motivation: The establishment of the Earlham Friends Academy was deeply
rooted in Quaker tradition, where it was "common practice in a Quaker settlement that a church
and school be built simultaneously." The Friends community in Earlham and the surrounding area
felt the need for educational opportunities beyond the elementary level for their young people.

Development of the Academy: In the late 1880s, the idea of a Quaker secondary schoolin
Earlham was revived. A board of trustees was formed, including prominent citizens, who worked
to approve plans and solicit funds. Reasons for needing such an institution included the perceived
inadequacy of the existing public school system in providing advanced education beyond the
eighth grade and the desire to offer a private, Quaker-influenced education to students both within
and outside the local district.

Financing and Construction: Financing the Academy was a significant task, but the entire
amount was raised through the solicitation of funds from local Friends. The construction of the
building began in 1890 and cost between $10,000 and $12,000. The Academy was situated on ten
acres of ground, and the building was a two-story structure containing recitation rooms, a music
room, a library, two assembly rooms, a furnace room, kitchen, and dining room. Construction was
completed in 1891, and the Academy opened for the fall term in 1892.

Administration and Organization: The Earlham Friends Academy was opened in the fall of 1892.
A board was selected to direct the affairs of the school. The first faculty selected included C.B.
Pickrell as principal, who had previous experience in public schools, and teachers for
mathematics, science, Latin, grammar, English, and vocal music. Enrollment in the first year was
"remarkably large."

Nature of the Curriculum: In its early years, the Academy aimed to provide grades nine through
twelve. By 1892, a curriculum offering academic and preparatory courses was established. The
academic course was designed to prepare students for professions and/or college, requiring two
years of study for the academic and the preparatory. Subjects included Algebra, Latin, Rhetoric,
Essay, Geometry, General History, Caesar, Political Science, Trigonometry, Literature, Christian
Studies, American Government, Economics, and Bookkeeping. Music was also an important part
of the curriculum, with instruction in piano, harmony, voice culture, and sight reading.

Continuity of the Academy: Despite changes in principals and faculty over the years, the
Academy continued to operate. Enrollment fluctuated, experiencing periods of growth and
decline. The curriculum also evolved to meet the needs of the students and the community.

Unification with the Public School System: By 1900, financial difficulties made it apparent that
the Academy could not continue without a different source of revenue. The board of directors
discussed the possibility of uniting the Academy with the public school system. A proposal was
made to the district board, requesting that the local board take over the operation of the Academy
on a trial basis for one year. Following a special election in March 1901, the proposal was
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overwhelmingly approved, and the Academy became the possession of the public school district.
This unification significantly improved the educational system by maintaining the Academy's
established educational standards and curriculum.

e Closing of the Academy: The provided excerpts do not detail the specific reasons or exact date of
the Academy's final closing. However, the narrative shifts to its integration with the public school
system, suggesting that the Earlham Academy as a separate entity ceased to exist at some point
after the unification.

lll. Effects on the Town of Earlham and Surrounding Area:

o Educational Influence: The founding and operation of the Earlham Academy significantly
impacted the educational landscape of the town and surrounding area. It provided advanced
educational opportunities that were initially lacking in the public school system. The Academy
also attracted students from outside the immediate district, contributing to a more diverse
student body.

e Community Hub: The Academy served as a social center for the community, hosting
commencement exercises, baccalaureate services, and other events that drew large crowds. Its
athletic and musical programs also fostered community engagement and pride.
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IV. Religious Aspects of the Academy:

While founded by the Friends Church, the Academy was not strictly a religiously oriented school.
Religious facilities were available, and the school day was marked with some religious
implications, including morning chapel services. However, there were no specific requirementsin
regard to religious subjects as part of the course of study. After unification with the public school
system, the school gained a "more liberal atmosphere."

V. Extra-Curricular Activities:

The Academy fostered a vibrant extra-curricular environment, including athletic programs (though
initially not highly emphasized due to religious convictions), and a strong music program. The
Academy maintained one of the largest school orchestras in the state, and musical training was
offered to all students free of charge.

Quotes from the Original Sources:

On the founding of Quaker settlements: "It was common practice in a Quaker settlement that a
church and school be built simultaneously." (Chapter ll)

On the reason for establishing the Academy: "Many Friends felt that the creation of an academy
would remedy this situation by affording a high school education to students not only of the
Earlham area, but to students outside of the district as well." (Chapter Il)

On the naming of the town: "The selection was derived from Earlham College of Richmond,
Indiana, a Friends school and this was a community settled by Quakers." (Chapter I)

On the unification: "The purchase was made and the Academy became the possession of the
public school district." (Chapter l)

On the music program: "During its time, the Academy had the distinction of maintaining one of the
largest school orchestras in the state. Every student in the Academy was given musical training
free of charge and could join the chorus, band, or orchestra." (Chapter Ill)

Summary and Conclusions:

The Earlham Academy, a Quaker-founded institution, played a crucial role in the development of
education in Earlham, lowa, from 1893 to its unification with the public school system after 1901. Driven
by the Quaker emphasis on education and the perceived need for advanced schooling beyond the
elementary level, the Academy provided a valuable service to the community and attracted students
from a wider area. Despite facing financial challenges, the Academy maintained relatively high academic
standards and fostered a rich extra-curricular life. The eventual unification with the public school system
marked a significant moment, allowing the continuation of quality secondary education within the
community. While the excerpts do not cover the final closing of the Academy in detail, they highlight its
important legacy in shaping the educational landscape of Earlham.
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Asking questions about this history

Once you have documents like this loaded into your NotebookLM project, you can then ask questions.

For example, when asked, “How did the Quaker community influence the Earlham Academy?”, the
following answer was generated:

“How did the Quaker community influence the Earlham Academy?”

The Quaker community significantly influenced the Earlham Academy from its very beginning. The title of
the document itself, "The Earlham Academy: A Quaker Founded Institution of lowa 1893-1923", clearly
indicates this fundamental connection.

The background for the establishment of educational facilities is described as deeply embedded in
Quaker tradition. There was a prevailing concept within the Quaker settlement that a church and school
should be built simultaneously. The Friends of the Earlham community and adjacent area were quite
anxious to have educational opportunities beyond the elementary level available for those who sought
them. Their efforts ultimately led to the realization of this contention.

In 1890, the Quaker influence in the community became evident in the field of education once again
through the efforts of local interested members of the Friends Church. This led to the building and
operation of the town's two schools, with the dream of visualized Earlham having, in part, become a
reality. The Friends Church essentially gave the town two schools.

The original intent for the Academy was to be a private institution for the Quakers.

Even though the Academy later unified with the public school system, religious aspects related to its
Quaker origins were still present. While there were no specific requirements regarding the religious
background of students, the school day was marked with some religious implications, and chapel
services were held each morning in the main assembly room. All students were required to attend,
and strict study habits were encouraged, with any deviation being grounds for dismissal.

The Quakers' background in the community was responsible for the establishment of the Academy.
The Academy offered a student a well-rounded education which was not uncommon at the time. The
financial difficulties of the Academy ultimately led the Friends to completely abolish any intent of seeking
the ultimate goal of making Earlham a college town. The financial status of the school became so
strained that it was necessary to eventually sell the facilities and building to the public school system.
This move toward unification greatly improved the educational system by maintaining many rigid Quaker
procedures which were instituted in the Academy and which had proved worthwhile. For instance, the
requirements for the selection of study were such as to provide a student with an outstanding
background preparation either for college or the professions.

The Quaker background is subsiding in the Earlham area as is the history of the old Academy. The
institution is a relic of the past mostly unknown by those who live there. However, the mergence of the
Earlham Academy with the public schools represents a true picture of the procedures which
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happened in many other midwestern communities, and it is a story of educational history that should
not be forgotten.

“What subjects comprised the Academy's curriculum?”

The curriculum of the Earlham Academy was structured to provide two courses of study: the academic

and the preparatory.
The academic course was a four-year program. The subjects included:
e FirstYear:
o Fall Term: Algebra, Latin, Rhetoric, Essay
o Winter Term: Algebra, Rhetoric, Latin, Essay
o Spring Term: Algebra, Latin, Grammar Reviewed, Essay
+ Second Year:
o Fall Term: Algebra, Greek, General History, Essay
o Winter Term: Geometry, Caesar, General History, Essay
o Spring Term: Geometry, Botany, General History, Essay
e Third Year:
o Fall Term: Geometry, German, Zoology, Elective
o Winter Term: German, Physics, Cicero, Elective
o Spring Term: German, Virgil, English History, Elective
o Fourth Year:
o Fall Term: Virgil, Geology, English, Elective
o Winter Term: Literature, Political Science, Trigonometry, Elective
o Spring Term: Christian Studies, Literature, Elective

Electives in the third and fourth years consisted of courses in American Government, Economics, and
Bookkeeping. Music was also optional for students, with enrollment numbers suggesting considerable
interest. Instruction was given in piano, harmony, voice culture, and sight reading.

The preparatory course was a two-year program. The subjects included:
e First Year:
o Fall Term: Arithmetic, Grammar, Geography, Reading and Spelling

o Winter Term: Arithmetic, Grammar, U.S. History, Reading
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o Spring Term: Arithmetic, Grammar, U.S. History, Reading and Spelling
e Second Year:

o Fall Term: Arithmetic, U.S. History, Grammar, Physiology

o Winter Term: Civil Government, Geography, Arithmetic, Orthography

o Spring Term: Arithmetic, Grammar, Physical Geography, Rhetoricals

The Academy's curriculum aimed to prepare students for a profession or for those seeking to enter

college. The latter course required only two years of study and was designed to prepare a student for a
commercial occupation.

After the unification with the public school system, the curriculum of the Academy consisted of the
following subjects: Psychology, Political Economics, Latin, Rhetoric, Arithmetic, American History,
Botany, Algebra, Physics, Physical Geography, Civil Government, and the commercial studies. The

required length of study to complete this program ranged from one to two years, depending on the
student's progress.
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Timeline

NotebookLM will also create a timeline for the documents in the project.

Here is a detailed timeline of the main events covered in the excerpts provided from "The Earlham

Academy" and a cast of characters with brief bios:

Detailed Timeline of Main Events:

1851: Township lines are drawn, and the name Madison is given to the settlement after President
James Madison. The greater part of the town lies in Madison township.

Prior to 1847: The area that would become Earlham has only a few white settlers, mainly trappers
and traders.

By 1868: Businesses begin to appear in the area that will become Earlham as the town is
established for the purpose of a rail center on the mainline between Des Moines, lowa, and
Omaha, Nebraska.

Winter of 1868-1869: Two lumber companies establish centers in Earlham and furnish materials
for building houses and business concerns.

1869: Five months after the first stake was driven, thirty-five dwellings are completed. Seth Wilson
builds the first entertainment center, calling it the Earlham House.

Fall of 1869: The name "Earlham" is chosen for the town, suggested by Mrs. Milton Wilson and
favored because it derived from Earlham College in Richmond, Indiana, a Friends school,
reflecting the Quaker community's intention to establish a similar institution.

March 30, 1870: A petition is filed in the District Court asking for the incorporation of Earlham as a
town. The petition contains forty-one signatures.

April 26, 1870: An election is held on the question of incorporation, and the results are favorable.

1870: The year is considered one of rapid growth and development for the new community. The
enumerated population of Earlham is 222. Two churches (Presbyterian and Conservative Friends),
plans for a third church (Methodist), and a bank are completed. Other businesses and institutions
begin to appear.

1871: The first public school is opened. Because no building is yet available, classes are held in
the basement of the Friends Church. The first public school building of brick and native limestone
iscompleted and located one block east of the business district. Miss Mattie Newby is the first
teacher.

By 1873: The population of Earlham has slightly declined to 220 persons.

1884: The Earlham Gazette, the town's first newspaper, acquires its first press. The first editions
are published near Stuart and distributed in Earlham.
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1890: The Quaker influence in the community becomes evident in education again. Local
interested members of the Friends Church build and operate the town's two schools.
Construction of the Earlham Academy building begins.

1890-1891: Construction of the Earlham Academy is completed. The building is considered the
most modern structure in the county at the time of completion in 1891, and preparations are
made for the opening of the fall term in 1892. The cost of construction ranges from $10,000 to
$12,000. The Academy is situated on ten acres of ground.

Fall of 1892: The Earlham Friends Academy opens. A board of directors is selected to direct the
affairs of the school. The first faculty is selected for the opening term. Enrollment during the first
year is remarkably large, with fifty-one students registered by the beginning of the final quarter.

May 1896: The first commencement exercises are held. Two students, Harry Hill and Nettie
Stanford, complete the necessary academic work and qualify for diplomas.

May 19, 1897: The second annual commencement exercise is held in the Academy assembly
room. Reverend Rosenberger, president of William Penn College, is the principal speaker. Miss
McCarroll presents diplomas to the graduating students.

1897: The Reverend H. Edward McGrew replaces Miss McCarroll as principal of the school. Jessie
Perisho assists him, teaching mathematics and science. Amos Pickrell, a former graduate,
remains on the faculty.

1899: In Miss Nellie Woods replaces Reverend McGrew as principal. Miss Edith Hunt assists her.
Financial difficulties plague the continuation of the school.

August 14, 1900: The board of directors discusses the possibility of uniting the facilities of the
Academy with those of the public school system. A proposition is received from the district board
for a review.

August 16, 1900: At a special meeting, the board discusses the proposition of unification. A vote
is taken, and it is unanimously decided that the Academy proposition should be accepted.

February 25, 1901: Professor W.H. Monroe reports that the Academy board of directors has
agreed to sell the Academy building and grounds to the public system for a total of eight thousand
dollars.

March 11, 1901: A special election is held on the proposal before the public, and the results are
favorable, with one hundred and ninety-five votes in favor and forty-one opposed. The purchase is
made, and the Academy becomes the possession of the public school district.

1901-1902: The Academy experiences one of its most successful years under the direction of
Professor Monroe. Student enrollment increases to more than fifty students.

By 1908: Tuition costs have increased.
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e By 1907: The Academy pioneers the athletic program in Madison County.

¢ 1908: One hundred and fifty students are enrolled at the Academy, over half of whom are non-
resident students. Forty-eight students graduate.

¢ 1914: Fourteen students receive diplomas.
e Around 1915: A photograph shows the main assembly room of the Academy Building.

e 1923: The period covered by this document ends. The Bell Memorial would be erected by the
Alumni later, between 1934-1954.

Cast of Characters and Brief Bios:

¢ James Madison: (Mentioned) The fourth President of the United States. The original settlement
was named Madison after him in 1851.

o Seth Wilson: Built the first entertainment center in Earlham in 1869, called the Earlham House.

e Mrs. Milton Wilson: Suggested the name "Earlham" for the town in the fall of 1869, inspired by
Earlham College, a Quaker institution in Indiana.

 Miss Mattie Newby: The first teacher of the public school in Earlham, which opened in 1871 and
initially held classes in the basement of the Friends Church.

e John J. Mendenhall: A prominent farmer and citizen of the Bear Creek community north of
Earlham, noted as a member of the board of trustees involved in reviving the idea of a Quaker
secondary school in the late 1880s.

e Mark Hill: A local banker in Earlham and a representative involved in the movement to establish
the Academy. He donated the site for the building for the sum of one dollar.

e Louisa Knudson: Represented the Earlham Friends in the efforts to establish the Academy.

e A.P. Callison, Cummings, lowa; Elizabeth Hollingsworth, Stuart, lowa; Mrs. G.M. Stanton,
Earlham; Mark Hill, Earlham; and P.W.M. Hadley all of Earlham; Clinton Cummins, Paton,
lowa; Reverend John Pennington, Oskaloosa, lowa; S.E. Lewis, Redfield, lowa; and Eli
Compton, Dexter, lowa: Members of the board of directors of the Earlham Friends Academy.

e John Pennington: Reverend, served as the president of the board of directors of the Earlham
Friends Academy.

¢ Mrs. C.M. Stanton: Served as the secretary of the Earlham Friends Academy board.
e C.B. Johnson: Served as the treasurer of the Earlham Friends Academy board.

e C.B. Pickrell: Appointed principal of the Earlham Friends Academy for the opening term in 1892.
Had previously served in public schools and was also assigned to teach mathematics and
science.
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Eda M. Haskell: Hired to teach Latin, Grammar, and English.
Mr. G.A. Wirtz: Taught instrumental and vocal music.
Ellen Hill: Remained a member of the staff and taught elocution and Delsarte.

Deborah Pennington, Latin, Grammar, and English; Olda Adams, Piano and Organ; Ruth
Joyce, Art; and Frank White, Guitar and Violin: Members of the faculty for the second year of the
Academy (after C.B. Pickrell).

Mr. J.A. Beard: Replaced James Beard as principal for the 1895-1896 school year.

Miss Etta McCarroll: Elected by the board of directors to teach Latin, Grammar, and Literature.
She was appointed principal following the unification with the public school system.

Bertha M. Beard: Taught English and History.

Idah Harris and Mabel Wagner: Served as the music instructors.
Ida Harper: Art instructor.

Ella Hill: Elocution instructor.

James Beard: Principal before being replaced by Mr. J.A. Beard.

Professor Francis K. Jones: Assisted Miss McCarroll. Taught Mathematics, Science, and
Psychology.

Belle Stonbecker: Elocution instructor for the term.
Helene Searle: Music instructor.
Dr. Edwin Day: Lecturer on Physiology and Hygiene.

Reverend Rosenberger: President of William Penn College, Oskaloosa, lowa, served as the
principal speaker at the second annual commencementin 1897.

S.E. Lewis: President of the board of directors who presented diplomas at the 1897
commencement.

Reverend H. Edward McGrew: Replaced Miss McCarroll as principal in 1897.
Jessie Perisho: Assisted Reverend McGrew and taught Mathematics and Science.
Amos Pickrell: A former graduate of the Academy, remained a faculty member.
Miss Nellie Woods: Replaced Reverend McGrew as principal in 1899.

Miss Edith Hunt: Assisted Miss Woods as principal.
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¢ Professor W.H. Monroe: Named principal of the public schools for two previous years, also
assigned as principal administrator of the Earlham Academy after its unification with the public
school system. He also taught Arithmetic and Science.

e Alice Starbuck: Taught English and Grammar in the public school system after unification.

¢ May C. Monroe: Wife of Professor Monroe, taught in the music department along with Oscar
Bogue.

e Oscar Bogue: Taught in the music department along with May C. Monroe.

o E.M. Crosswait: President of the board of education who delivered the commencement address
in 1904.

This timeline and cast of characters should provide a detailed overview of the main events and people
involved in the history of the Earlham Academy based on the excerpts provided.
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Mind Maps

NotebookLM can produce Mind Maps from your documents to show relationships between concepts,
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Frequently Asked Questions

These frequently asked questions were automatically generated by NotebookLM.

Frequently Asked Questions about The Earlham Academy

1. What was The Earlham Academy and when did it operate? The Earlham Academy was a Quaker-
founded educational institution located in Earlham, lowa. It operated from 1893 to 1923, providing
secondary education to the local community and beyond. The Academy aimed to offer a well-rounded
education rooted in Quaker values.

2. What were the primary reasons for establishing The Earlham Academy? The establishment of the
Academy was driven by several factors, including the desire among the Quaker community in Earlham to
provide educational opportunities beyond the elementary level for their children. The existing public
school system was not always perceived as sufficient for advanced studies, and Friends felt a need for a
school that reflected their religious and moral principles. The Academy was also intended to serve
students from the surrounding rural areas who lacked access to secondary education.

3. What was the initial curriculum offered at The Earlham Academy? In its early years, the Academy
offered two main courses of study: the academic course and the preparatory course. The academic
course, spanning four years, included subjects such as Algebra, Latin, Rhetoric, Geometry, German,
Physics, Literature, Political Science, Trigonometry, English History, and Christian Studies. The
preparatory course was designed for students needing foundational work before entering the academic
course and included Arithmetic, Grammar, Geography, Reading and Spelling, U.S. History, Civil
Government, Physiology, and Orthography. Over time, electives like American Government, Economics,
and Bookkeeping were also introduced.

4. How was The Earlham Academy administered and organized? The Earlham Friends Academy was
overseen by a board of trustees, comprised of prominent citizens and Friends from the community. This
board was responsible for approving plans, soliciting funds, and directing the affairs of the school. The
Academy had a principal who was in charge of the day-to-day operations and the academic program. A
faculty of teachers was hired to instruct the students in various subjects. The school was supported
financially through tuition fees, donations from the Quaker community, and potentially from Quaker
organizations elsewhere.

5. What were the religious aspects of The Earlham Academy? As a Quaker-founded institution,
religious influence was present at The Earlham Academy. While the facilities were available to students
regardless of their religious background, the underlying principles and values of the school were rooted in
Quaker tradition. The school day included some religious implications, such as chapel services held
each morning. Strict study habits and avoidance of deviation from rules were encouraged on moral
grounds.
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6. What extracurricular activities were available to students? The Academy provided a range of
extracurricular activities, including athletics and music. Although initially there wasn't a formal athletic
program due to religious convictions, the Academy eventually established a competitive program
involving baseball, football, and track and field, with the community's support. Music was given
significant attention, with the Academy maintaining a large school orchestra and offering musical training
free of charge. Students could also join the chorus and band.

7. What factors led to the eventual unification of The Earlham Academy with the public school
system? By 1900, financial difficulties made it challenging for The Earlham Academy to continue
operating independently with sustained financial losses. To ensure the continuation of secondary
education in the community, the board of directors explored the possibility of uniting the Academy with
the public school system. A proposal was made for the local school board to take over the operation of
the Academy on a trial basis, which was ultimately approved in a special election in 1901. This unification
allowed the educational resources and facilities of the Academy to be integrated into the public school
system, ensuring broader access to advanced training.

8. What was the legacy and impact of The Earlham Academy on the town and surrounding area?
Despite its relatively brief existence, The Earlham Academy played a significant role in the educational
development of Earlham and its surrounding community. It provided a higher standard of education than
what was initially available through the public schools alone, preparing students for further education
and various professions. The Academy fostered a strong sense of community engagement in education
and contributed to the intellectual and social life of the town. The eventual absorption of the Academy
into the public school system ensured that the commitment to quality secondary education continued in
Earlham, building upon the foundation laid by the Quaker institution.
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